
Mason County PUD No. 1 
Budget Workshop & Regular Board Meeting  

November 12, 2024 
11:00 a.m. and 1:00 p.m. 

 
 
 
 

 
1) Budget Workshop- 11:00 a.m.  

 
2) 1:00 p.m.- Call Regular Business Meeting to Order 

 

3) Public Comment- Members of the public wishing to comment may request permission to do so during the 
Public Comment portion of the agenda. Comments shall be limited to no more than 5 minutes per speaker. There 
will be no action or discussion of public comment items, although the board may defer to PUD management for 
any necessary response. 

 

4) Consent Agenda 
Minutes:    Regular Board Meeting October 22, 2024 
   
Disbursements:   Accounts Payable Wire     $   262,276.12            

        Check Nos.  125710-125798  $   273,463.28 
              
     Payroll Wire     $     91,903.47 
      

Grand Total      $  627,642.87 
 

5) Business Agenda 
a. HRA VEBA Program Changes 
b. Set Public Rate Hearing for Sewer & Power Rates 

 

6) Staff Reports 
a. General Manager 
b. District Treasurer 
c. Water Resource Manager 
d. Legal Counsel 

  

7) Correspondence  
8) Board Comments 
9) Other Business/Public Comment 

10) Executive Session may be held as authorized by the Open Public Meetings Act (RCW 42.30.110) 
11) Adjourn  

 
 

2024 Calendar Reminder 
 
Nov 13-15 WPUDA Association Meetings, Olympia 
 

Join Zoom Meeting  
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/858
69053743  

Meeting ID: 858 6905 3743  
1 (253) 215-8782 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85869053743
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85869053743


Mason County Public Utility District No. 1  
Board of Commissioners Special Board Meeting   

October 22, 2024, Potlatch, Washington 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
 
Present:      Visitors:  None 
Jack Janda, President (virtually)     
Ron Gold, Vice President       Excused:  Rob Johnson, Legal Counsel 
Mike Sheetz, Board Secretary  
Kristin Masteller, General Manager    
Katie Arnold, District Treasurer  
Brandy Milroy, Water Resource Manager  
                             
CALL TO ORDER:  Jack called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  None. 
 
APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 

Minutes:    Regular Board Meeting October 8, 2024 

Disbursements:   Accounts Payable Wire     $  246,177.00     

        Check Nos.  125653-125709  $1,032,329.01 

     Payroll Wire     $     83,958.19 

     Grand Total      $1,362,464.20 
 

Ron made a motion to approve the consent agenda as presented; Mike seconded the motion. It passed 
unanimously. 
 

Business Agenda: 

PPC Executive Committee Nominations– The board provided feedback to the General Manager on the 
voting process for the Public Power Council’s executive committee elections and asked her to submit it to 
PPC. 

Approve list of Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Grant Projects– Ron made a motion to approve 
the list of DWSRF projects as presented; Mike seconded the motion. It passed unanimously. 

September 2024 Financial Report– Katie gave the report for the September 2024 financials. 

Financial Highlights: 

• Revenue – Gross Revenue was $1,052,325 for the month of September 2024. 

• Expenditures –Gross expenditures were $917,204 for the month of September 2024. 

• As of September 30, the PUD has $1,099,610 in grant reimbursements outstanding for ongoing 
projects, which is an equivalent of about 43 days of our cash on hand. 

 



Mason County Public Utility District No. 1  
Board of Commissioners Special Board Meeting   

October 22, 2024, Potlatch, Washington 
 

Financial Metrics as Compared with Prior Year: September 

2024 

September 

2023 

Total General Cash and Investments $1,087,351 $975,242 

Current Ratio (Current Assets/Current Liabilities) 1.89 to 1 1.68 to 1 

Debt Service Coverage (O&M/ Debt Service) 3.62 3.09 

Long-Term Debt to Net Plant 24% 30% 

Total Debt to Equity Ratio (Total Liabilities/Total Equity) 35% 39% 

Long Term Debt to Equity Ratio 

(Long Term Debt / Total Equity) 

29% 35% 

Times Interest Earned Ratio 

(Earnings before Interest & Taxes/Total Interest) 

6.07 4.26 

Cash on Hand 

(Total Available Cash/Average Daily Costs) 

43 Days (General) 

165 Days (All Funds) 

38 Days (General) 

170 Days (All Funds) 

 

 

Duckabush Project Change Order No. 3– Mike made a motion to approve Change Order No. 3 in the 
amount of $25,000; Ron seconded the motion. It passed unanimously. 

Staff Reports –  
General Manager – Kristin gave an update on the state audit questions regarding the use of the 
prequalified electrical contractors roster and transformer procurement. She and Katie are working with 
Rob to get the state auditors the information they need. She also stated that she is posting a job 
announcement for a Business Services Coordinator to join the management team and help with the 
workload since they have not backfilled after a retirement in 2023. Kristin gave an update on the 
Duckabush and Manzanita projects and the tideflats and T3 substation work that is upcoming.  
 
District Treasurer – Katie gave an update on several of the grant applications that were submitted 
including ones that are due this year for FEMA BRIC, BPA conservation and DWSRF. Katie also is working 
with IT and the State Auditor’s office on a cyber security audit and has scheduled a reasonable suspicion 
training and is working on an active shooter training. She is working on 2025 budget. 
 
Water Resource Manager – Brandy gave an update on the numerous well pump replacements that are 
underway at different systems and said the water crew is continuing the work on the lead service line 
inventories at Group A systems.  

Legal Counsel – Rob was at an American Public Power Association conference this week. He is working 
with Katie to provide documentation for the state audit and will help Kristin on an interlocal agreement 



Mason County Public Utility District No. 1  
Board of Commissioners Special Board Meeting   

October 22, 2024, Potlatch, Washington 
 

between PUD 1 and FD 6 and the Sheriff’s office on using the Manzanita House for training drills before it 
is demolished for the water storage project. 

Correspondence – None. 
 
Board Reports –  
Mike – Nothing new to report since WPUDA water meetings last time.  
 
Jack – Gave an update on the Energy Northwest new nuclear project now that the press release is public 
regarding the Small Modular Reactor partnership with Amazon. 
 
Ron – Nothing new to report. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT – None. 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION – None. 
 
Adjourned: 11:20 a.m. 
 
 
              
Jack Janda, President Ron Gold, Vice President             Mike Sheetz, Secretary 













Proposed HRA VEBA Plan Changes 

1. Encourage savings in the PUD’s primary medical plan by allowing employees who 
are otherwise covered under a spouse’s coverage to waive coverage under the 
PUD’s plan in exchange for a health stipend. 

a. The PUD proposes to deposit a health stipend of $500 per month that 
coverage is waived into the employee's HRA VEBA account once annually. 
This would be offered to all employees and therefore be an eligible activity 
under the HRA VEBA plan rules. 

b. This could potentially save the PUD between $5,200 and $23,400 annually 
per employee who opts out of coverage. 

 
2. Activate the HRA VEBA’s Flex Spending Account option to allow an additional pre-tax 

deduction into an annual Health Savings Account. There will be no employer match. 
Employees will be able to defer up to $3,300, pre-tax into this separate account to 
pay for qualifying medical expenses in a calendar year without touching their HRA 
VEBA account, where the funds are allowed to roll over annually. 
 



1011 Plum St SE  Box 42525  Olympia, WA 98504-2525
www.pwb.wa.gov 

October 23, 2024 

Kristin Masteller 

Mason County Public Utility District No 1 

21971 N Hwy 101 

Shelton, WA 98584 

RE: PUBLIC WORKS BOARD CONSTRUCTION PROGRAM AWARD LETTER 

Dear General Manager Kristin Masteller, 

Thank you for submitting a Public Works Board Construction program application for 

consideration by the Public Works Board (Board). Congratulations, your Manzanita 

Water Storage Project has been selected for an award of $3,922,750 in loan funding and 

$692,250 in grant funding. Our office just completed the underwriting for this project, 

and your loan interest rate is 1.38% with a 20-year loan term. 

The Board approved your construction application for funding at its September 6, 2024, 

meeting. The approval date is the funding award date. Any eligible costs incurred from 

this date forward are reimbursable.   

The Governor’s Executive Order 21-02 requires projects funded through appropriations 

in the State’s Capital Budget to be reviewed prior to any ground-disturbing activities 

and the expenditure of any state funds for construction, demolition, or acquisition. 

Once your scope of work and milestones are approved, your contract will be emailed to 

you for signature using DocuSign. Applicants must fully execute contracts within six 

months of receipt.  

Once again, thank you for applying to the Public Works Board.  Please contact your 

Project Manager, Tammy Mastro by email at tammy.mastro@commerce.wa.gov if you 

have any questions.   

Sincerely, 

Sheila Richardson 
PWB Programs Director and Tribal Liaison  
(564) 999-1927 

cc: Katie Arnold, Mason PUD 1 District Treasurer



From: Steve Parker
Cc: Twila Denham; Kevin Morrison
Subject: EnergySec RMUC Grant Application
Date: Wednesday, October 23, 2024 11:44:43 AM

[WARNING] This email originated outside of Mason PUD 1, DO NOT click any links or open any attachments if
you are not certain this is from a safe sender. Thank you!

To our Participating Utilities:

On behalf of EnergySec, I would like to thank you again for your partnership on our grant application under DOE’s
Rural and Municipal Utility Cybersecurity (RMUC) program. I am pleased to inform you that our application has
been “selecting for negotiations leading to award.”  In short, this means that DOE intends to award our grant subject
to negotiations and agreement finalizing the scope of work, project deliverables, and related budget items. This
negotiation is standard practice for such awards and should be completed by the end of 2024. We expect grant funds
to begin supporting work this coming January.

Pursuant to DOE recommendations and in consideration of the sensitivity of the work to be done under this award,
EnergySec will not be making any public announcements regarding the funding. Similarly, our work with you will
be considered confidential, and we will not publicly discuss any of the work or those involved in the project. Of
course, your organizations are free to discuss your involvement in any forum you deem appropriate.

Between now and the finalization of our award we would like to continue our conversations with each of you as we
plan for substantive work to begin early in 2025. We also expect to make some staffing decisions and be able to
introduce you to additional team members in the near future. Kevin Morrison will remain as your primary contact,
but feel free to contact me directly at any time.

The objectives of this project have been a vision for EnergySec for several years. I’m thrilled that DOE has
entrusted us with a significant investment to develop a program to strengthen small utility security. Now the work
(and the fun) begins in earnest.

Thank you,

Steven Parker
President

mailto:steve@energysec.org
mailto:twila@energysec.org
mailto:kevin@energysec.org



	Agenda 11-12-2024.pdf
	Minutes 10-22-24 Regular Board Meeting.pdf
	CHECK REGISTER.pdf
	VEBA Summary.pdf
	Correspondence packet.pdf
	correspondence.pdf
	EnergySec RMUC Grant Application.pdf
	10232024MasonCoPUD1_FY25Const_AwardLetter (002).pdf


